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SOME BASIC RAW DATA FOR THE LLOYD, SYMINGTON, WALKER, 

AND ALLSEBROOK FAMILIES –  

ROUGH DRAFT DATED MARCH 30 2016 
 

1812: 26
th

 June banns read at St. Peter and St. Paul, Aston, Warwickshire. 

 

 
 

1812: 28
th

 December Marriage of Ashkenaz Lloyd to Nancy (Ann) Fieldhouse at St. Peter and 

St. Paul, Aston ,Warwickshire. 

 

 
 

1814: 7
th

 February baptism of Catherine, daughter of Ashkenaz and Nancy (Fieldhouse) Lloyd. 

She was born on 6
th

 October 1813. Their ‘abode’ is Lionel Street, Birmingham and Ashkenaz is 

a Steel Toy Maker. 
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1814: Ashkenaz Gustavus Lloyd was born on 2

nd
 November at Little Colmore Street, 

Birmingham.  

 

1816: Ann Amelia Lloyd was born on 4
th

 October at Little Colmore Street, Birmingham.  

 

1816: Ashkenaz Gustavus and Ann Amelia were baptized on the same day: 28
th

 October at St. 

Phillips, Birmingham. Father: Ashkenaz Lloyd (steel toy maker) and mother Ann. 

 

 
 

1818: May 22
nd

 at St. Mary, Birmingham Burial of Ashkenaz Gustavus Lloyd aged 3 years. 

 

 
 

Another Lloyd family headed by an Alexander Lloyd has been found at Willenhall in 

Staffordshire, which is about 30 miles from Birmingham. He is a Locksmith and Padlock 

manufacturer. The two Lloyd families may have been connected, but this has to be confirmed. 

Alexander Lloyd could have been a brother of Ashkenaz Lloyd - there was one year between 
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them based on the 1841 census where Ashkenaz is 44 and Alexander is 45. For now we ignore 

the Alexander Lloyd family. 

 

1830: 22
nd

 July, baptism of George Fieldhouse Lloyd, son of Ashkenaz & Nancy, Diesinker of 

London. At St. Peter's, Wolverhampton. Their ‘abode’ is London. [A diesinker is one who 

engraves or stamps designs on metal]. 

 

 
 

1833: 13
th

 March, Sun Alliance Insurance: Insured: Ashkenaz Lloyd, 22 Coppice Row 

Clerkenwell, hardwareman, tinman, and die sinker. 

 

1836: Five of Ashkenaz and Nancy (Fieldhouse) Lloyd’s children were baptized on the SAME 

day - 14
th

 September - at St. Saviour, Southwark: 1. William Henry born 16
th

 August 1824; 2. 

John born 9
th

 September 1827; 3. Alfred born 27
th

 December 1830; 4. Edmund born 4
th

 June 

1833; 5. Clara born 25
th

 August 1836. 

 

The first child of Ashkenaz and Nancy’s was born in 1813 and the last child in 1836 – a range of 

23 years - which is impressive but not impossible so long as Nancy was very young when she 

married. 

 

 
Ashkenaz Lloyd  
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1841 Census: Ashkenaz Lloyd with his wife Ann and sons Frederick, William, John, George, 

and Edmund.  
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1841: Census Catherine and her sister Ann Amelia are in the King's Road, Chelsea. She is 25 

years old and a milliner. [From another source]  

 

1842: 24
th

 March - Marriage of Ann Amelia Lloyd to William Crole. 

 

1851: Census Ashkenaz Lloyd (59), Tin Plate Worker, Nancy Lloyd (58), Wife, Frederick T 

Lloyd (32) Medical Student, John A Lloyd (23) Artist, Edmund Lloyd (17) Pupil Teacher, 

Charlotte Littlewood (19), servant. Residing at 36 Old Brentford Road, Ealing. 

 

[Some sources have Edmund emigrating to Australia] 
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1853: 30
th

 April - Advertisement for George Fieldhouse Lloyd (snr.) as Surgeon-Dentist at 

Leicester.  

 

 
 

1854: John Alexander Lloyd (I)’s marriage to his first wife Jane Meyers on 26
th

 October at 

Ealing Parish church. She was the daughter of Henry Meyers – Market Gardener of Ealing. He 

[JAL (I)]  is a dye sinker. 

 

 
 

Jane Meyers has been found on the 1851 census aged 19 residing in Ealing with her father Henry 

Meyers (48) Market Gardener, her mother Jane Meyers (48), and brothers Henry (21) and John 

(17) along with one servant. 

 

1855-56: Electoral Register: Ashkenaz Lloyd (on last complete line). He is residing at Harnagton 

Cottage and owns three freehold cottages. 
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1855: Both John Alexander Lloyd (I) (tin manufacturer) and his father in law Henry Meyers 

(market gardener) bought shares in the Great Western and Brentford Railway (Thames Junction). 

Also John’s brother William Henry Lloyd.  

 

 
 

1856: Baptism of Henry Ashkenaz Lloyd. Father John Alexander Lloyd (I) and mother Jane 

(Meyers) Lloyd, on 10
th

 January at Christ Church, Turnham Green, Chiswick. Henry was born 

on the 8
th

 December 1855. They are residing at 2 Clayton Terrace, Strand on the Green, 

Chiswick. 

 

 
 

1856: (Jan-Mar Quarter) Death Index: Henry Ashkenaz Lloyd son John Alexander and Jane 

(Meyers) Lloyd (I) at Brentford. 

 

1856: April Death Jane (Meyers) Lloyd wife of John Alexander Lloyd (I) and mother of Henry 

(above). She was buried on 19
th

 April at St Mary, Ealing.  
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1858: Ashkenaz Lloyd died on 21
st
 September at Sidmouth, Devon. Probate Record: 

 

 
 

1859: Presumably Frederick Thomas Lloyd and Mary Unknown were married. So far a record 

has not been found.  

 

1860: Baptism of Mary Fieldhouse Lloyd - Father Frederick Thomas Lloyd. Mother Mary Lloyd. 

At St. Mary, Ealing, on 27
th

 June. She was born on 26
th

 March. 

 

 
 

1861 Baptism on 1
st
 January at Turnham Green of William Edmund Harry Lloyd the son of 

William Henry and Matilda (Wykes) Lloyd.  William Henry was JAL (I)’s brother. 

 
 

1862: John Alexander Lloyd (I) married Lindsay Mary Symington: 
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1863: Baptism of Florence Lindsay Lloyd. Father: John Alexander Lloyd. Mother: Lindsay 

Lloyd on 4
th

 December at St. Paul’s, Deptford, Surrey. 

 

 
 

1864: George Fieldhouse Lloyd (Surgeon Dentist) married Susanna Davis on 26
th

 April at St. 

Pancras Parish Chapel. 

 
 

1864: Baptism of George Fieldhouse Lloyd (Junior) on 26
th

 December at St Andrew's, Rugby, 

Warwickshire: 

 

 
 

1864: Death/Probate of Matilda (Crooke) Lloyd the wife of William Henry Lloyd (JAL [I]’s 

brother) 
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1870: 22
nd

 October baptism of Reu Ashkenaz Lloyd the son of George Fieldhouse Lloyd (snr.) at 

St. George’s, Hanover Square: 

 

 
 

 
The Lloyds go off for a drive 

 

1871: Census – George Fieldhouse Lloyd (dental surgeon) (aged 42) and family at St. George’s, 

Hanover Square. With wife Susannah (aged 28), son George Fieldhouse (6), and Reu Ashkenaz 

(11 months). Susannah’s unmarried sister Emma Davies (a draughtswoman aged 38) is living 

with the family. 
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George Fieldhouse Lloyd (Snr.) [From Ancestry.com] 

 

1871: Census - Frederick Thomas Lloyd (52), wife Mary Lloyd (44), and daughter Mary 

Fieldhouse Lloyd (11) living at 83 High Street, Uxbridge. Middlesex.  
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1871: Baptism of William Symington Lloyd son of John Alexander and Lindsay Lloyd on 18
th

 

October at All Saints, Hatcham Park. 

 

1873: Dissolution of a partnership. The three Lloyd brothers: William Henry Lloyd, John 

Alexander Lloyd (I), and Alfred Ashkenaz Lloyd. 
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1874: Nellie Symington Lloyd daughter of John Alexander and Lindsay (Symington) Lloyd 

baptised on 5
th

 November at All Saints, Hatcham Park.  

 

1876: Leonora Weldon Lloyd baptism on 23
rd

 November at All Saints, Hatcham Park. 

 

1877: Lloyd Patent Award: 

 

1877: Patent Infringement by the Lloyds. A case was brought against them which they lost.  
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1878: Patent Awarded 

 

1878: Baptism of Alfred Edmund Lloyd son of John Alexander Lloyd (I) and Lindsay Mary 

Symington born on 7
th

 June and baptised on 10
th

 October:  

 

1881: Census John Alexander Lloyd (Gentleman Farmer), Lindsay (wife) (43), Florence (18), 

Ada M. (15), Nellie (7), Leonora (5), Alfred (3) at Caterham, Surrey. 
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1885: Marriage banns of George Fieldhouse Lloyd (jun) and Emily Marian Duffey on 9
th

 

February at St George’s, Bloomsbury, Middlesex. 

 

1887: A partnership is dissolved:  
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1890: Marriage of George Fieldhouse Lloyd (jun.) to Emily Marian Duffey on 22
nd

 February at 

St George’s, Bloomsbury. 

 

Both George Fieldhouse senior and junior were dentists as was Serug James Lloyd the son of 

GFL (snr.). 

1890:  Burial at Caterham of Colin Lindsay Lloyd, aged 9, son of John Alexander Lloyd (I) and 

Lindsay Mary Symington. 
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1891: Census: John Alex Lloyd (63) Manufacturer, Lindsay Lloyd (52), Florence Lloyd (27), 

Ada May Lloyd (14), John Alex Lloyd (21) Assistant Maufacturer, Nellie Lloyd (16), Leonora 

Lloyd (14), Alfred Ed Lloyd (12), Ellen L Thompson (55) Widow and Visitor.  

 

1891 Census: William Henry Lloyd (brother of JAL (I)) aged 66. A widower with his two sons 

William Edmund Harry Lloyd (30) and Charles Lloyd (28). All three are ‘tin can manufacturers’ 

and Kate Wykes (38) (Housekeeper);  Matilda Searle (22) and Edith Searle (20) (servants). 
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1891: Burial of Frederick Thomas Lloyd aged 72 on16th January at Norwood Cemetery, 

Norwood Road, Lambeth. His ‘abode’ was 13 Palace Square, Upper Norwood, Surrey. He died 

on 12
th

 January but so far no probate record has been located which is odd. 

 

1891: Death of  George Fieldhouse Lloyd (snr.) on 18
th

 December: 

 

1891: 19
th

 November - William Edmund Harry Lloyd and Kate Wykes marriage at St Stephens, 

Twickenham 

 

1893: Baptism of Marian Alexandra Isabel Lloyd on 16
th

 September, at St. Geroge’s, Tuffnel 

Park, daughter of George Fieldhouse Lloyd (jun.) and Emily Marianne Duffey. 



21 

6/2/2016 

 

1893: Registry of Dentists for the years 1878 – 1882 showing George Fieldhouse Lloyd (snr.) He 

appears to have moved from Regent’s Park to Tottenham Court Road in that time period. 

 

1899: Reu Ashkenaz Lloyd’s Probate. [A record of his having attended University College 

School from 1879-1881 has been found] 

 

 
 

1899 William Edmund Harry Lloyd death and probate. He was the son of William Henry Lloyd 

and nephew of JAL (I). 
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1899: Advertisement: 

 

 
 

1901: Census The Lloyd family at the The Manor House at Woodmansterne: John A Lloyd (73), 

Lindsay Lloyd (62), Ada M Lloyd (33), John A Lloyd (31), Nellie S Lloyd (26), Leonora W 

Lloyd (24), Alfred E Lloyd (22), Ellen D Thompson (65), Guthrie Allsebrook (25) (Civil 

Engineer) is a visitor. 
 

 
 

Below: The Lloyd’s home at Woodmansterne  
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1904: John A Lloyd Advertisement in The Autocar, Volume 13: 

 

 
 

1904: 26
th

 July death of John Alexander Lloyd (I) : 

 

 
 

1905: Edinburgh Gazette: George Fieldhouse Lloyd (jun.), dentist, declared a bankrupt.  
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1905: 1
st
 April Ann Amelia (Lloyd) Crole [the sister of JAL (I)]: 

 

 

 
 

1907: Nellie Symington Lloyd married Charles Salmon Paddon. Registration Quarter: Apr-May-

Jun. Registration district: Croydon. 

 

1908: Lester Harry Lloyd [the son of George Fieldhouse Lloyd Snr. and nephew of JAL (I)] put 

on trial and convicted for pretending to be a qualified dentist licensed to practice:  
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1909: Baptism of Lloyd cousins: Inez Nancy Lloyd (top left) daughter of John Alexander Lloyd 

(II) and Lindsey Mary Lloyd (bottom right) daughter of Alfred Edmund Lloyd. 
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1910  Lester Harry Lloyd was a London-born Dentist who moved to this house on Swithland 

Lane with his wife and two young sons. Examples of architectural plans submitted by clients of 

Rothley Temple Estates. 
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1911 census shows Mary Lloyd, the widow of Frederick Thomas Lloyd (brother of John 

Alexander Lloyd (I)), and her daughter Mary Fieldhouse Lloyd. 

 

 
 

1911 Census Alfred Edmund Lloyd and Family. 

 

 
 

1911 Census John Alexander Lloyd (II), tin box manufacturer with a visitor – no members of the 

family are counted.  
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1911 Census Charles Frederick William Lloyd (48) [tin can manufacturer]; wife Ethel Clara 

Lloyd (36); Harry Vyvian Lloyd (10); Jessamine Ruth Lloyd (9); Margaret Ethel Lloyd (7); 

Charles Peter Lloyd (3); Nancy Lloyd (0); Domestic servants: Muriel Johnson (26); Audry 

Johnson (16); Margaret Elizabeth Silkes (20); and Beatrice Howard (19). 

 

 
 

1911 Census - Florence Sybil (Clinch) Lloyd the widow of Reu Ashkenaz Lloyd aged 40 along 

with her children: Florence Sybil Lloyd (19) shop assistant, draper; Dorothy Beatrice Lloyd (15) 

Sowing machinist, Millinery; Reu Lloyd (13); Annie Pricilla Clinch (69) [grandmother]; and 

Rachel Lindley 
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1911 September 17
th

 Baptism of Sheilah Mary Edith Lloyd baptism daughter of Alfred Edmund 

Lloyd and Edith Mary at Chipsted, Surrey. 

 

 
 

1912: Baptism of Nancy Fieldhouse Lloyd on 19
th

 May at St Margaret’s, Chipsted, Surrey, 

daughter of John Alexander Lloyd (II) and Hilda Mary Walker:  

 

 
 

Unknown Date: Lid of A. Lloyd manufactured tin caddy found on e-Bay: 
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1912: October Serug James Lloyd married Annie Hill (1
st
 wife).  

 

1912: Lindsay Mary (Symington) Lloyd wife of John Alexander Lloyd (I) died on 23
rd

 

November – probate record; 

 

 
 

1914: August Preparing for War. 

 

The Board of Trade are pleased to establish a Trade Board in Great Britain for the making of 

boxes and canisters from tin plate, … namely, the lining of packing cases with tinplate, the 

making of trunks, uniform cases, suit and dress cases, bonnet and helmet boxes, cash and deed 

boxes, kegs and drums, and any other branch of work which does not form part of the tin box 

and canister trade. In accordance with the Regulations for the above-mentioned branches of trade 

…. Twenty-one members representing employers in the trade, chosen by the Board of Trade 

after considering names supplied by such employers, namely :— 
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1916: A Lloyd casualty of war: 

 

 

LLOYD 

Forenames: Alfred Fieldhouse 

Date of Death: Monday, 16th August 1915 

Regiment: Bedfordshire 

Battalion: 1st/5th 

Company: - 

Rank: Private 

Number: 4245 

Cause of death: Killed in action 

Age: 20 

Born: - 

Enlisted: Luton 

Resident: Luton 

Theatre of War: Gallipoli 

Buried/Commemorated: Helles Memorial, Turkey 

Grave/Memorial Details: Panel 54 and 218 

Further information: Son of the late George Fieldhouse Lloyd and Emily Lloyd. Resident 40, 

Milton Road, Luton. 

 

1922: Lester Harry Lloyd ran afoul of the law. Lester was the son of George Fieldhouse Lloyd 

(Snr.) and Susannah Davis.  His name is sometimes ‘Leicester’ which is where he was born. 
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1923: Death and probate of Ellen Kathleen Lloyd the daughter of William Edmund Harry Lloyd 

who was JAL (II)’s first cousin. She was 29 years old. 

 
1925: The sad demise of George Fieldhouse Lloyd (jnr.) the Dentist on 6

th
 September. 

 
George Fieldhouse died at 13 All Saints Terrace, York Road, Leeds (below).  

 

 
 

This article appeared in the Daily Mail – 8
th

 September 1925.  [The original appears below this 

transcription.]  

VARIED CAREER AND SHOCKING DEATH 

  

Said to have drunk the contents of six pint bottles and four whisky bottles of methylated spirits in 

a short period before his death, George Saw (76), peddler of All Saints' Terrace, York Road, 

Leeds, was found dead in his house on Sunday. 

  

A remarkable story of the old man's eccentric habits was told at the inquest held on Monday.  It 

was said that he had been a sailor, a surgeon-dentist, a peddler, and an amateur painter.  As far as 

was known, he had no relatives.  He had lived in All Saints terrace for six years, and had been 

addicted to heavy drinking.   

  

He seemed to have been well brought up, and it was doubtful if his real name was Saw.  He had 

papers which referred to a George Fieldhouse Lloyd, but this name, the old man had explained, 
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was that of either his brother or his nephew.  Other papers related to property in Bedfordshire, 

and dealt with matters as far back as 1826.  It was not clear whether he was connected with the 

property spoken of.  In his house were 44 paintings, some of which were thought to be valuable. 

 

 
  

1927: Serug James Lloyd married Rose Manship (2
nd

 wife) at Leicester. Serug was the son of 

George Fieldhouse Lloyd (snr.). Like his father and brother, George Fieldhouse (jnr), Serug was 

also a dentist. 

 

1928 Alfred Edmund Lloyd’s wife Edith Mary Dow died on 24
th

 September: 

 

 
 

1928: How Serug James Lloyd ended his own life and that of his wife on 21
st
 December: 
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The injured child was Gordon Lloyd who 

survived. Below, James Hayden Lloyd 
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James Hayden Lloyd was born on 27th August 1915 at 267 

Belgrave Gate, Leicester the son of James Serug Lloyd and 

Annie Hill. He died in September 2000 in Cheshire. Below, his 

wife Florence Marjorie Townson born on 31st August 1916 at 

Rock Ferry, Birkenhead, Cheshire, and died in April 2002, 

Cheshire. 
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1928 Probate of Serug James Lloyd the son of George Fieldhouse Lloyd (Snr.) and Susannah 

Davis: 

 
1929 March 4

th
  The Great Fire at Deptford  
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1939: Probate of Mary Fieldhouse Lloyd. She was the daughter of Frederick Thomas Lloyd.  

 

 
 

 
 

UNDATED John Alexander Lloyd (I) with wife Lindsay Mary Symington (seated) and their two 

sons: John Alexander Lloyd (II) [Alec] and Alfred Edmund Lloyd, and daughters Leonora 

Weldon Lloyd. (?) 
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Below: A much later image of JAL I 

 

 
 

Below: Lid of tin container manufactured by John A. Lloyd $ Sons: 
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NO DATE: 

 

 
 

 
 

1933: Marriage of Inez Mary Lloyd to Harold Bertram Waters on 12
th

 September, at Michael’s, 

Betchworth, Surrey. 
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1934: A Cruise to the West Indies: 

 

 

 
 

 

1935 Below, some of Alfred Edmund Lloyd’s patent drawings: 
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1938 Harry Vyvian Lloyd (standing) and his wife Kitty Wakeford and Harry’s brother in law 

Eric Wakeford and one unknown. Harry was the son of Charles Frederick William Lloyd and 

grandson of William Henry Lloyd who was JAL (I)’s brother (see charts). 

 

 
 

1942 Death of Michael Edmund Lloyd son of Alfred Edmund Lloyd on 18 June 1942 while on 

active duty.  

 

 
 

 
 

The end of the company … 
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1947 Harry Vyvian Lloyd probate: 

 

 
 

 

 
1944 Death notice in the Daily Mail 12

th
 July for Edith (Sollitt) Lloyd. She was the widow of 

Lester/Leicester Harry Lloyd. Lester was the son of George Fieldhouse Lloyd Snr. and nephew 

of JAL (I)]: 

 

 
 

1936: Hilda (Walker) Lloyd with her with her granddaughter Janet Ann Lucille Lloyd outside the 

home of JAL (III). 
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1944  

 

 
 

The records of the John A. Lloyd & Sons Company can be found at the National Archives, Kew 

HERE 

 

1948 David Horace Lloyd [brother of John Alexander (III)] and family leave England for 

Australia: 

 

http://discovery.nationalarchives.gov.uk/details/record?catid=3290174&catln=6
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1952 Death of Nellie Symington (Lloyd) Paddon: 

 

 
 

 

1953: Alfred Edmund Lloyd’s Probate [brother of JAL (II)]: 

 

 
 

1955: Joan Margaret Lloyd daughter of Alfred Edmund Lloyd and Edith Maud Dow, and wife of 

Ray Edmund Richard Jewry-Harbert, published: The importance of physiotherapy in the 

treatment of sick children. 
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2010: David Man outside Hartsfield Manor the home of Hilda Mary (Walker) Lloyd. Photograph 

taken by Paul Tovey the great grandson of Hilda’s. 
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Brian Paddon [From Wikipedia] 

 

Group Captain Brian Paddon DSO (born 24 August 1908), was a Royal Air Force pilot who 

became a Prisoner of War and successfully escaped from Colditz Castle during the Second 

World War. 

 

Paddon was born in Carshalton, Surrey the son of the Reverend Charles Salmon Paddon and his 

wife Nellie Symington (Lloyd) Paddon. In the 1911 Census of Redruth in Cornwall, Paddon, 

aged two, is living with his parents at Lannarth Vicarage. 

 

Paddon joined the RAF on a short service commission as a Pilot Officer (on probation) in June 

1929. He obtained his Royal Aero Club Aviator's Licence #10796 on 3 September 1932. 

 

Paddon was shot down flying Bristol Blenheim L8827 of No. 40 Squadron RAF during an attack 

at Saint-Valéry-en-Caux on 6 June 1940 as part of the Battle of France. He was captured and 

became a Prisoner of War. 

 

After passing through the interrogation and transit camp of Dulag luft he was first sent to Oflag 

IX-A/H at Spangenberg before shortly afterwards leaving for Stalag Luft I at Barth, arriving 

there on 12 July 1940, where he became the Senior British Officer. 

 

After several escape attempts from various camps, he was sent to Oflag IV-C at Colditz Castle 

arriving there on 14 May 1941 with three other officers including Airey Neave. 

 

After several more attempts to escape, on 11 June 1942, he was sent to a Court-martial at Stalag 

XX-A for insulting a German officer during one of his previous escape attempts. However, he 

managed to escape from his cell, and with the aid of other British Prisoners of War, left the camp 

with a work party, slipped away and travelled to Danzig. He stowed away on a Swedish ship and 

successfully reached neutral Sweden on 18 June. He returned to the UK on 6 August 1942. 

 

He was awarded the Distinguished Service Order and promoted to Group Captain. He was also 

awarded the Distinguished Flying Cross. 

 

Paddon had married Sheila Mary Mansell in 1935 but she died in Malta on 23 September 1939. 

They had two daughters, Erica and Shane. 

 

He married again in 1948 to Anita Williams, they had three daughters - Patricia (born 

12/11/1949 in Wendover, Aylesbury, UK), Wendy (born 19/3/1951) and Bridget (born 

7/11/1953) both born in Rhodesia. 

 

Paddon retired from service on 10 November 1950. He died in retirement in Rhodesia in 1967. 

 

 

 

 

http://www.flightglobal.com/pdfarchive/view/1969/1969%20-%203149.html
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THE SYMINGTON FAMILY 
 

We begin with William Symington who was born in 1809 at Sanquhar, Scotland and died on 12
th

 

December 1898 at Northamptonshire. He was the son of Robert Symington and Janet Lindsay. 

William is the progenitor of all who follow. The Symington family connects with the Lloyd 

family when Lindsay Mary Symington married John Alexander Lloyd (I). 

 

 
 
1851: William Symington on the census – he is a coffee roaster born in Scotland with wife Mary 

[Weldon] and children: Millicent, Lindsay, John, Samuel, William, and Mary. 
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1899: 26
th

 May Northampton Mercury. The will of William Symington: Note the reference 

below to Mrs. Lloyd. 

 

 
 

1862: The Leicester Chronicle, 11
th

 January (left Column). A Symington factory outing.  

 

1892: The Leicester Chronicle, Sudden death of Robert Symington (William’s brother) 8
th

 

October (right column) 
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1871: The Lincoln, Rutland and Stamford Mercury, 26
th

 May 

 

 
 

1871: Nottinghamshire Guardian, 9
th

 June:  

 

 
 

1872: Jackson's Oxford Journal, 21
st
 September: 

 

 
 

1904: Northampton Mercury, 3
rd

 June: 
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1903: Northampton Mercury, 27
th

 November: Death of Edward Johnson Symington. He was the 

son of James Symington (see chart). 

 

 
 

1908-1909 Death and probate of brothers- Samuel Symington and William Henry Symington 

and 
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Samuel Symington 

 

1911 Census; John Weldon Symington became a homeopathic medical practitioner. There do not 

appear to be children of this marriage. John was the brother of Lindsay Weldon Symington who 

married JAL (I).  

 

 
 

1911 Census Bessie Weldon Symington in medical practice with Gertrude Ellen Austin. Bessie 

was the daughter of Samuel and Mary Elizabeth (Watson) Symington. She is not sown on the 

chart. 

 

 
 

1911 Census; Howard Watson Symington his wife Rose Marguerite and two sons Kenneth 

William and Samuel Philip. The eldest son Howard Watson was recorded away at a boarding 

school. 
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1911 James Lindsay Symington probate 

 

 
 

1913 John Weldon Symington Probate 

 
 

1917 Gold Robert Symington death and probate. He was the son of Samuel and Sarah (Gold) 

Symington [he is not shown on the chart] 

 

 
 

1933 Death and probate of Mary Weldon (Symington) Daw. Her daughter married Alfred 

Edmnd Lloyd brother of 

 

1935: Image below is of Samuel Philip Symington son of Howard Watson Symington. Another 

son Noël Howard or Noel Edward Symington (we are not sure which is which) published a 

booked ‘Night Climbers of Cambridge’) 
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In 1937 a book titled The Night Climbers of Cambridge was published. Its author, Noel Howard 

Symington (see chart), used a pseudonym: Whipplesnaith. He shared a hobby with his friends - 

climbing the walls and towers of University of Cambridge at night. Climbing on buildings was 

nothing new then, but Symington, in his photos, managed to document this kind of activity for 

the first time. Some of these photographs are reproduced below. There are many references to 

Symington’s high jinx on the Internet.  

 

 
: 
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1943: Howard Watson Symington death and probate. Howard was the father of Noel Howard 

Symington, the Cambridge climber. 

 

 
 

1954: Samuel Philip Symington death and probate.  

 

 
 

1955: Bessie Weldon Symington Probate. Bessie was the sister of Howard Watson Symington. 

She is not shown on the chart.: 

 

 
 

1963: Death and probate of Kenneth William Symington the son of Howard Watson Symington 

and brother of Samuel Philip Symington 
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St. Mary the Virgin Churchyard, Brampton Kettering, Northamptonshire. 

 

 

A BRIEF HISTORY OF THE SYMINGTON FOOD COMPANY 

 

1827 - The Beginning - William Symington, a young canny Scot who was both a businessman 

and an inventor, moved to the Midlands in 1827 to make his fortune. He founded the original 

company selling Tea, Coffee, and groceries.  

 

 

 
 

 

 

William forged a company with the belief that he could transform the diets of people across the  

country through his passion for creating excellent dried foods that are also convenient to prepare. 

 

1852 - The Invention of Pea Flour: One of William’s most notable successes was the creation of 

pea flour, which became a mainstay in Victorian & Edwardian kitchens across the country for 

providing nutritious soups and broths. 
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From the remarkable invention of pea flour enabled soup to be made in just one minute by 

simply adding boiled water. 

 

 

 

 

1854 to 1856 - Symington's pea flour was particularly popular with the military and it became a 

main part of the diet of British troops fighting in freezing conditions in the Crimean War. 

 

1898 - Company founder, William Symington dies and is succeeded by his son Samuel, who 

focuses on growth through Pea Flour & Coffee Mark1901 - First to Market with Healthy 

Products. 
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Symingtons were among the first manufacturers to promote the benefits of a healthy diet with 

their Egyptian food range (prepared with lentils from Egypt), which won high praise from the 

medical journal The Lancet in 1901 (below). 

 

 

 
 

1904 - Scott of the Antarctic Britain's great explorers also recognised the benefits of Symington's 

foods and in 1901 the company supplied pea flour to Scott's Discovery Antarctic Expedition. 
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Describing in his diary 'A lot can be done with the addition of a little boiled pea meal' 

 

Fifty years later, when one of Scott's food stores was discovered, the supplies of pea flour were 

still in perfect condition! 

 

Symington's Emerges as Innovators of Dried Foods: 

 

Symington's became the ‘Cook's friend in the cupboard’, by developing a range of Soups (8 

varieties), Granulated Gravy Improver, Custard Powder, Blancmange Powder, Table Jellies, 

Lemonade crystals and Table Creams. Some of these products are still manufactured by 

Symington's today. 

 

 
1909 - First Major Consumer Promotion: Carrying on the success of his father (Samuel), Howard 

Watson Symington leads the company with its first major coupon based consumer promotion 

using Dame Ellen Terry in all advertisement material. 

 

1936 - Symington's has it's first front page advert in the Daily Mail as advertises in many 

magazines, papers, London buses, and the Underground. 

 

 
 

Symington's soups become a major brand with the company having recipe books, it's own radio 

show and competitions that used major personalities including Gracie Fields. 
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The company also commissioned Mabel Lucie Attwell, the children's book illustrator (Alice in 

Wonderland) with the creation of 'Susie' a little girl who starred in the company's posters and 

adverts. Below left from The Daily Mail 1929 and right The Guardian May 1959: 
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The Symington Corset Factory Timeline: 

 

History of the Market Harborough Factory and the Symington’s Company 

 

1827 William Symington left his family in Lanarkshire and moved to Market Harborough. He 

began a tea, coffee and grocery warehouse and shop. c.1830 Brothers James and Henry 

Symington began a small business of tailoring, hat making and woolen drapers. 
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1835 James married Sarah Gold, a staymaker. 

 

1850 James and Sarah started their stay business in a small cottage behind a shop in the High 

Street. They became part of the town’s prosperous mercantile class. 

 

1855 James and Sarah’s son Robert travelled to America and brought back a Singer sewing 

machine.  

 

1861 Robert and William Henry took over the corsetry business.  

 

 
 

1881 The Symington factory employed 1600 people and had 500 machines. Their corsets were 

being exported to Australia, Africa, Canada and the United States. 1884 George Katz Warren 

joined the business and the factory moved to Church Gate. 
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1890 The business has expanded to Manchester, Rugby and Farnham 1898 The company became 

public in order to survive financially becoming R & WH Symington & Co. Ltd. 1901 Two new 

workrooms and a club room were added to the Church Gate factory. 

 

 
 

1905 The company imported fabric from Germany to decrease their costs in order to become 

more competitive. 1919 The company created a sports ground for their employees including 

tennis courts and a bowls club. 
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1920 The factory (above) had a library, a clinic and rest rooms. Below from the Financial Times 

1936: 

 

 

 

 

1957 Symington’s won the license to produce ready to wear foundation garments for Christian 

Dior. 
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1964 - 1967 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

1967 Courtaulds took over the factory.  
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1980 The offices and workrooms were sold to Harborough District Council. 1990 The factory 

closed. Below: The factory today. 

 

 
 

WILLIAM WELDON SYMINGTON 

 

 
 

1868: William Weldon Symington applies for a patent described as: Machinery for sizeing, 

tarring, dyeing, drying and finishing laid and other twines, lines, yarns, threads and fibres … 

 

1870: William Weldon buys Rockside estate and builds Skaigh House (below), on the edge of 

the village of Belstone in Dartmoor. He also built bridges over the river, laid out riverside paths 

and lined them with rhododendrons, and constructed four summerhouses and a ‘fountain’.  
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The Symingtons also lived at Pixie’s Holt at Dartmeet which today has been turned into an 

outward bound visitors’ center. The Natural History Museum in London has several letters 

written by Lindsay Dening Symington (son of William Weldon Symington ) to Arthur Goodson. 

The address on the letters is: Pixie's Holt, Dartmeet, Prince Town, Devon. 

 
 

 

1871 Chelmsford Chronicle 13
th

 January 

 

 
 

1873: Patent awarded to William Weldon Symington: 

 

 
 

1875: Patent awarded to William Weldon Symington: 
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1881 Census: William Weldon Symington (36) retired Civil Engineer, Susan Mary Wife 

[Dening] (37), Lindsay Dening son (9), Beatrice GS daughter (6). Blanche Dening, aged 19, 

niece of Susan Mary Dening is visiting. 

 

 
 

LINDSAY DENING SYMINGTON –  

AN ILLUSTRATED BIBLIOGRAPHY AND SHORT HISTORY 

 

Lindsay was the son of William Weldon and Susan Mary (Dening) Symington  

(See chart below)  

 

1. The Meaning of Love by Arthur Maquari. Published by Bickers & Son, London, 1915 

2. An Alphabet of Saints [The Daily Chronicle noted: "This alphabet is the richest mine of 

unforced humour in verse we have struck since the twentieth century began. Symington's 

illustrations are really delightful”.] 
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3. The Uffizi A.B.C. 

 

 
 

4. Father O’Flynn with additional versions in Gaelic & Latin and a facsimile of the author's 

ms. also by the same author, Ould Doctor Mack. 

5. Het scheepje van Petrus by E. F. Nugent, E. F.[Dutch translation] 

 

  
 

6. The Children's Hour of Heaven on Earth by Vincent Joseph MacNabb. 

7. Het Uur Der Kinderen Van Den Hemel Naar De Aarde by MacNabb, Vincent. [Dutch 

translation of the above] 

8. Steenhoff-Smulders, Alb. By Francis Thompson 
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9. The Inchcape Rock ... With a note on the Abbot of Aberbrothok by Abbot Gasquet, and 

twenty-one drawings by Mr. Symington. 

10. As stars for ever by Symington, Lindsay D [as author].  

11. For My name's sake by Bascle de Lagrèze, Gaston.  

 

 
 

12. The Holy Child Seen by His Saints ... by Margaret Mary Kennedy. 

13. The Rhymed Life of St Patrick by Katharine Tynan 

14. Princess Melody ... With seven illustrations by L. D. Symington (1909) by Florence M. 

Mulholland  

15. The Weeping Angel. By Father Faber. With Illustrations by L. D. Symington. 

16. Josephine's troubles: A story of the Franco-Prussian War of 1870-1871 (1907) by Percy 

Fitzgerald, Percy.  

17. Two Angel Tales: "The Last Children" and "Philip, or the Pains of Children." By Father 

Faber. With twelve Coloured and other Illustrations by L. D. Symington.  

18. The Bell Rock Lighthouse, … with … a note by Mr. Everard Meynell upon the Bell Rock 

Lighthouse, which has replaced it, and numerous illustrations by Mr Lindsay D. 

Symington. The price is one shilling net.” 

19. The Vengeance of Boabdil 
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Part of a review of The Rhymed Life of Saint Patrick: 

 

 
 

 

From The Tablet 2
nd

  June 1906   Illustrated editions 

of Cardinal Wiseman's "Fabiola" and Cardinal 

Newman's "Callista" and "Loss and Gain," come to 

us from Messrs. Burns and Oates. The drawings are 

by Mr. Lindsay Symington, "the man with the 

paints" who illustrated the "Alphabet of Saints," and 

they will undoubtedly help readers to realise more 

vividly the incidents they portray, and to form a 

better general idea of the garb and appearance of the 

characters in whom they are interested. Speaking 

generally the illustrations to "Callista" seem to us 

especially successful. In their new form these books 

should enter upon a fresh field of extended 

popularity, and will doubtless be largely sought as 

presents and prizes, for which they are especially 

suitable. 
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Right the frontispiece of ‘Honour Without Renown’ by 

L. D. Symington. One has to wonder, given the low 

church Calvinist back round of the Symington’s, how 

Lindsay wound up publishing only with Catholic 

owned publishers. He must have converted but what 

was the motivation, etc? 

 
 

Below: William Weldon Symington, his wife Susan Mary (Dening), son Lindsay Dening 

Symington and daughter Beatrice Symington (from the Scott Tuke collection at the Tate Gallery, 

London). 
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1904 Probate of William Weldon Symington who died on 30
th

 December at Port of Spain, 

Trinidad.  

 

 
 

Below: From left to right: Lindsay Dening Symington, Everard Meynell, Henry Scott Tuke and 

Johnny Jackett outside Tuke’s cottage at Swanpool. Photograph at the Tate Gallery, London. 
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Below August Blue by Henry Scott Tuke: Lindsay Symington is the young man in the water 

holding onto the boat. Symington was a good friend of Tuke’s, the latter often visiting the 

Symington family home, Pixies’ Holt, at Dartmeet, Prince Town. 

 

 
 

Below: A rare departure from Henry Scott Tuke's main themes in his painting of figures (mostly 

nude and male) around the coast of Falmouth, instead Tuke had acquired 'a moth-eaten uniform', 

from the Napoleonic era which was the starting point for this painting. It shows Napoleon 

reviewing his soldiers after a victorious battle …  Tuke’s sister Maria describes how Tuke 

induced his friend Lindsay Symington and a young man called Caulfield who was a mining 
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student at Camborne, 'to stand in the uniform, waving what purported to be a sabre, Napoleon on 

his white horse imagined in the foreground.' [From Bonham’s Auction House Catalog] 

 

 
 

In 1902 and 1903 Lindsay exhibited paintings at the Royal Academy of Arts: 

 

 
 

Country Life made note of Lindsay’s 

painting of Jolly Lane Cot: 

 

The following pictures, of which space 

does not permit, should not be 

overlooked, an easy thing among such 

vast fields of mediocre of positively bad 

work: '”War” Arthur McCormick: 

“Jolly Lane Cott” Symington ….  This 

list does not pretend to have exhausted 

all the pictures that may be worth 

looking at, but it includes most of those 

that can be discovered without the aid 

of a telescope. Having so far only 

mentioned the good things, it would be 

unfair to omit some notice of the bad 

ones …. 

 

 
 

The Art Journal of 1895 reviewed the summer exhibit at 

the Royal Academy and noted: “Mr. L. D. Symington's 

'Flight into Egypt,' a daring work, amid such orthodox 

surroundings, deserves commendation for a really 

successful attempt at Art at once sacred and decorative.” 

 

Below a post card of ‘Jolly Lane Cott’, the subject of a painting that Symington entered to the 

Royal Academy’s Summer Exhibition in 1903. 
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1916: Lindsay Dening Symington’s medal card - Temporary Lieutenant to Captain 

Royal Engineers, Campaign Medal:  

 

 
 

1942: Lindsay Dening Symington’s Probate record: 
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William 
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Symington 
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Susan 

Mary 

Dening 

William Henry 

Symington 

m. 

Mary Weldon 

Helen 

Florence 

Symington 

m. 

William 

John 

Stephenson 
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Lindsay 

Dening  

Symington 

Helen Symington 

m. 

Henry Gold 

Mary 

Weldon 

Symington 

m. 

Samuel 

Daw 

Edward 

Johnson 

Symington 

Robert Symington 

m. 

Janet Lindsay 

Edith 

Mary 

Daw 

Alfred 

Edmund 

Lloyd 

Samuel 

Symington 

m. 

Elizabeth Gold 

Howard 

Watson 

Symington 

m. 

Rose 

Marguerite 

Duval 

 

Lindsay 

Mary 

Symington 

m. 

John 

Alexander 

Lloyd (I) 

7 

Peach 

Children 

Beatrice 

Gertrude 

Symington 

James 

Symington 

m. 

Sarah Gold 

Samuel 

Symington 

m. 

Mary 

Elizabeth 

Watson 

Millicent 

Jane 

Symington 
m. 

Joseph 

Jackson 

Goadby 

1.Lilian Symington 

Goadby 

2.William Symington 

Goadby 

3.Kenneth Weldon 

Goadby 

4.Howard Goadby 

1.Frederick Weldon Daw 

2.William Henry Daw 

3.Gladys Symington Daw 

Some, but by 

no means 

all, of the 

Symington 

Family 

Lizzie Symington 

m. 
Harold Knight 

Harold Knight 

m. 
Laura Johnson  

Self-Portrait by Laura 

(Johnson) Knight 
Laura Johnson by 

Harold Knight 
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Symington 
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Symington 
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William 

Symington 

Samuel 
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m. 
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Elizabeth 

? 
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Howard 

Symington 

m. 

Greta 

Joyce 

Stamford 
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William Weldon 

Symington 

m 

Susan Mary 

Dening 

William 

Henry 

Symington 

m. 

Mary 

Weldon 

Harry 

Man 

m. 

Nora  

Loeck 

Lindsay 

Dening  

Symington 

Morrice 

Lionel 

Man 

Dora 

Lucas 

Wilfred Meynell 

m. 

Alice Thompson 

Percival 

Drewet 

Lucas 

Alexander 

John Lloyd 

(II) 

m. 

Hilda Mary 

Walker 

Edward Garnet Man 

m. 

Katherine Jane 

Matthews 

Alfred Lucas 

m. 

Jane Drewet 

 

Lindsay Mary Symington 

m. 

John Alexander Lloyd (I) 

John 

Alexander 

Lloyd (III) 

Beatrice 

Gertrude 

Symington 

Eleanor 

Ida 

Man 

Madeleine 

Meynell 

Everard 

Meynell 

 

  

 Everard 

Meynell 

looking over the 

shoulder of 

Lindsay 

Symington at 

Scott Tuke’s 

cottage 

E. V. 

Lucas 

 

 

The Symington-Lloyd-Man-
Lucas-Meynell Connection 

Wilfred 

and 

Alice 

Meynell 
Frank Otto Stoe Man 

m. 

Sheila Allwynne 

Cran Reis 

David Gordon 

Man  
E. V. Lucas 

 

 Percival Lucas.  

D.H. Lawrence based 

the central character 

in England my 

England on Percival 
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THE WALKER FAMILY 
Benjamin WALKER was born in about 1806 at Stretton, Burton on Trent, Staffordshire.  

 

We do not know who Benjamin Walker’s parents were but strong candidates would be William 

and Ann Walker who had several children born at Burton-upon-Trent, Staffordshire in the early 

nineteenth century. If so, a record of a Benjamin Walker baptised on 22
nd

 November 1804 at 

Burton-upon-Trent, father William and mother Ann, could be who we are looking for. 

Benjamin’s siblings are: Michael (1792); Ann (1796); Hannah (1800); Thomas (1807); William 

(1794); Mary (1798); and Elizabeth (1802) [C16621-2.] . 

 

Benjamin married on 8
th

 November 1831 at Derbyshire, Emma Heap. Emma was born on 24
th

 

May 1813, at Melbourne, Derbyshire. Emma’s parents were John Heap and Mary Tivey (b. 

1779). John and Mary (Tivey) Heap were married in 1802 at Melbourne, Derbyshire. Mary was 

the eldest daughter Edward Tivey and Mary Fairbrother. 

 

Benjamin Walker died on 11
th

 August 1895 at Nottingham, Nottinghamshire (aged 82 years). 

Benjamin and Emma (Heap) Walker had six children. We are not sure exactly what happened to 

the company he founded but his nephew John Benjamin Walker went into the same line of 

business and seems to have eclipsed whatever Benjamin’s children achieved in manufacturing. 

 

John Benjamin Walker’s father, the above Benjamin’s brother, was Thomas Walker who appears 

on the 1851 census aged 45 living at Stretton, and born there, a widower, and a farmer with 25 

acres; a daughter Mary Ann aged 15; sons Thomas Henry aged 12; John Benjamin aged 9; and 

William aged 6; and daughter Elizabeth aged 4. 

 

 
 

 

 

http://wyndhammarsh.co.uk/genealogy/getperson.php?personID=I12772&tree=CledwynMarsh
https://familysearch.org/search/record/results?count=20&query=+batch_number:C16621-2
http://tiveyfamilytree.com/The-Tivey-Family-of-Leicestershire-P7.htm
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John Benjamin Walker has been found on the 1861 census residing at 65 Spring Close, Lenton in 

Nottinghamshire. He is a boarder, aged 18, a lace manufacturer, born at Stretton in Staffordshire. 

His brother William is also in the same residence, which is headed by a housekeeper named 

Hannah Higgott. 

 

 
 

1861 Census: The above John Benjamin Walker’s uncle, Benjamin Walker, has been found on 

the 1861 census aged 55 also born at Stretton in Staffordshire, Lace Manufacturer employing 

110 men, 22 boys, and 48 women and with wife Emma [Heap] aged 46 born at Melbourne, 

Derbyshire; daughter Jane aged 19; and son Benjamin aged 18; daughter Annie and son William 

aged 10 all born at Nottingham.  
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John Benjamin Walker married Betsey Anne Maud on 15
th

 July 1865 at the Parish Church of St 

Nicholas, Nottingham. 

 

John B. and Betsey Ann Walker are to be found on the 1871 census. He is a lace curtain 

manufacturer. No sign of any children, yet: 

 

 
 

John Benjamin and Betsey Anne (Maud) Walker had four children: 

+ 1. Hilda Mary, b. 1877, Nottingham. She married John Alexander Lloyd (II); 

2. Austen Benjamin, b. 1878, Nottingham; He married an American [?] Estelle Violet  

 3. Spencer Lewis (see obit below); and 

+ 4. Robert Dudley, b. 1882, Nottingham. In November 1909 he married Helen Main 

Crawford. He died in 1933 (aged 51 years). Children: John Andrew, Florence Mary, Robert, 

Elizabeth.  

 

1881 Census John Benjamin Walker - however there are problems with this entry as John is mis- 

transcribed as James. He is a lace manufacturer born at Stretton in Staffordshire aged 38. The 

eldest son is Austen B[enjamin] aged 2 years and Spencer L[ewis] aged 2 months both born at 

Nottingham. 



89 

6/2/2016 

 

 
 

1891 Census: John Benjamin Walker manufacturer and a magistrate aged 48, wife Betsy aged 46 

born at Leamington; Sons A. B. [Austen Benjamin] aged 12; S. L. [Spencer Lewis] aged 10; R. 

D. [Robert Dudley] aged 9; and daughter Hilda aged 4 – all born in Nottingham. 
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1911 Census John Benjamin Walker, aged 68, lace and curtain manufacturer, his wife Betsy 

aged 68. Their daughter Hilda Lloyd aged 24 is visiting her parents with her son John Alexander 

Lloyd (III) aged 2. [This explains why JAL (II) is alone on the 1911 census (above)]. 

 

 
 

1911 Census - Lewis Spencer Walker (son of John Benjamin) aged 30 a medical practitioner is 

single and living with Owen Bingham a 16 year old “page boy”. Lewis never married and was 

fondly remembered by the boy scouts at his funeral in 1967 (see below). 

 

 
 

1911 Census - Robert Dudley Walker aged 28 Lace curtain manufacturer. His wife Helen Main 

Walker aged 26 and son John Andrew Walker aged one year and servants. They at residing at 

The Park, Huntington Drive in Nottingham: 
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A SHORT HISTORY OF THE WALKER LACE 

COMPANY 

(Based on Nottingham University Archives) 

 

The family firm was founded in the 1840s by Benjamin Walker 

(1803-1883), who was originally  from Staffordshire. He was 

one of the pioneers of lace curtain making and formed a 

partnership with Edward Elsey in Beeston and Lenton. 

 

By 1854 Walker and Elsey were operating from a factory on the 

corner of Commercial Street and Spring Close in Old Lenton, 

and from the mid-1860s until 1883 Walkers also owned a 

factory on Russell Street in Lenton where they operated Levers 

lace machines.  

 

The company was employing 350 people in 1881, and Benjamin 

Walker had the house 'Lenton Eaves', now on the University Park campus of The University of 

Nottingham, built for him in around 1875. Benjamin Walker was co-founder, with Thomas 

Bayley, of the first co-operative movement in Nottinghamshire. 

 

Some of Benjamin’s patents: 

 

1852: Improvements in the manufacture of braids: 

 

 
 

1861: Improvements in machinery or apparatus for the manufacture of bobbin net or twist lace: 
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1867: Improvements in means or apparatus for the manufacture of narrow fabrics: 

 

 
 

Below, Lenton Eaves, built in 1875 by Benjamin Walker (lace maker). The redbrick, Victorian 

Gothic building is in the style of a shooting lodge. It has two hound kennels, together with 

stables and a coach house. Its overhanging eaves obviously inspired the house’s name. The Latin 

inscription to the right of the entrance, Deus Major Columna, God is our Great Pillar, tells us 

Walker was a God-fearing man. There is also a quirky window feature, possibly described as an 

oriel window, projecting from the north corner of the house. Small examples of stained glass can 

be seen in the windows.  

 

 
 

Benjamin's nephew, John Benjamin Walker (1843-1921), [father of Hilda Mary Walker who 

married John Alexander Lloyd (II)] established his own company, J. B. Walker, in the 1880s. He 

took lace-curtain machines from Spring Close to a newly-built factory on Derby Road, 

Sandiacre. His uncle Benjamin Walker continued to operate from Lenton as B. Walker and Co. 

but his company left Commercial Street just before the First World War. 
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In around 1894 J. B. Walker took over the firm of Henry Mallet and Sons, which was established 

at 35-37 St Mary's Gate in the Lace Market, Nottingham, and began selling lace as well as 

manufacturing it. Below from the catalog of the Paris International Exhibition of 1878: 

 

 
 

The Mallet trade name was used by Walker for selling lace until the 1920s when the J.B. Walker 

Company began selling finished lace under its own name. 

 

 
1921 John Benjamin Walker died on 21

st
 March at Bournemouth – probate record below: 
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After J.B. Walker's death in 1921 the firm was bought by his son Robert Dudley Walker (1882-

1933) with the support of his brother Dr. Spencer Lewis Walker, and the name was changed to 

J.B. Walker and Company. Dudley developed an export trade, especially with Canada. Dudley's 

son John A. Walker started working for the company in 1927.  

 

[There was a son of Robert Dudley’s christened Robert Crawford Walker born 1913 but nothing 

subsequent to that] 

 

Dudley died in 1933.  

 
 

He seems to have suffered from depression and his death was no accident. 
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Western Mail (Perth, Western Australia) 11 May 

1933: 

Jumping Twigs and Wire. 

What mysterious sensibility is it that has enabled 

Mr. John Clarke, a farmer of Ab Kettleby, 

Leicestershire, to locate the bodies of two 

drowned men with the aid of  only a couple of 

forked hazel twigs and a piece of copper wire? 

   Mr. Clarke, who is well known as a water 

diviner, led searchers to a spot in the River 

Wreake, where lay the body of Thomas Wilson, a 

missing commissionaire.  

   Later his twigs unerringly pointed out where 

the body of Mr. Dudley R. Walker, a Nottingham 

lace manufacturer, lay in the River Trent.  

   "He is kept very busy, you see," his daughter-

in-law said. "He has been practising divining for, 

I think, the last 20 years, but not until recently 

did he find that he could locate dead bodies. He 

was as astonished as anybody." She explained 

that it was necessary for Mr. Clarke to hold in 

one hand something that the dead man had worn.  

   "His gift is really uncanny," she went on. "He 

will take, for instance, a hat belonging to an 

absent person and in the other hand hold his 

hazel twigs and a piece of copper wire. The twigs 

immediately bend and shake and point in the 

direction of the owner."  

   She mentioned that when Mr. Clarke was 

water-divining the "reaction" of the twigs and 

copper wire were quite violent. "I have seen the 

copper wire coil rapidly and tightly round his 

arm when he has stood over a subterranean 

stream” she declared. "And if he stands over the 

two wells in the farmyard here the twigs will 

almost jump out of his hands. 

 

Dudley’s business partner Claude Newham formed a new company, Henry Mallet and Sons Ltd, 

which took over J.B. Walker and Company together with its Sandiacre factory. Newham became 

managing director, with J.A. Walker as a director. 

 

Two years later, in 1935, Newham and Walker split their partnership. Newham bought out the 

Henry Mallet business, and Walker the Sandiacre business. The company became a limited 

company, J.B. Walker and Company Limited, in 1937. The warehouse at 35-37 St Mary's Gate, 

Nottingham was in the hands of a trust after 1933, for the benefit of Dudley's widow and 

children, but was leased back to J.B. Walker and Co. Ltd by the trustees, who included J.A. 

Walker. It was sold in 1984. 
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In 1937 the Nottingham and Scottish lace curtain machine-owners came to a mutual agreement 

on price control. During the Second World War J.B. Walker and Co. Ltd, along with other 

Nottingham and Scottish manufacturers, was amalgamated into British Lace Furnishings Ltd, a 

company formed as a result of the Board of Trade's wartime action to concentrate industries. J.A. 

Walker was the Nottingham Controller. Members' plants were returned to their owners when 

British Lace Furnishings Ltd was closed down in 1948. 

 

After the Second World War J.B. Walker and Co. Ltd bought a neighbouring factory, the Acme 

Factory, in Sandiacre, from Sir Ernest Jardine. The Acme factory was rented out to tenants. 

In 1953 J.B. Walker and Co. Ltd was one of four companies, which formed a consortium to buy 

a Nottingham lace dyeing firm, Basford Dyers Ltd. The other companies were Cleland Brothers 

Ltd of Darvel, Scotland, Henderson Morton Inglis Ltd of Newmilns, Scotland, and Holmes and 

Baxter Ltd of Basford. J.A. Walker had worked with these owners during the period of British 

Lace Furnishings Ltd. 

 

http://www.macearchive.org/archive.html?Title=134 

 

In 1966 the four companies amalgamated to create Basford Dyers (Holdings) Ltd, each of the 

companies becoming subsidiaries of the holding company. The name of the holding company 

was changed to Basford Textile Group Ltd in 1969, and The Basford Group Ltd in 1990. J.A. 

Walker was chairman of Basford Textile Group Ltd from 1970 until his retirement in 1984. He 

remained as non-executive chairman for another year. Homeware products manufactured by the 

group were sold under the brand name 'Bonfab'. 

 

On J.A. Walker's retirement in 1984 the structure of Basford Textile Group Ltd became much 

tighter, with the various companies within the group becoming divisions of the parent company 

rather than subsidiaries. In the late 1980s lace production was concentrated in Darvel in 

Scotland, and the Sandiacre factory was cleared and sold in 1990. Basford Textile Group Ltd had 

bought the lace company George H. Fletcher and Sons Ltd, of Heanor, Derbyshire, in 1989, and 

subsequently moved the company's Head Office to Heanor. The Basford Group Ltd was sold by 

its shareholders to the Cresswell Group in 1996 and went into liquidation in around 1999. 

 

J.A. Walker was a prominent member of the British Lace Federation, a trade association 

representing the lace industry, and was its Deputy President in 1967 and its Vice-President in 

1988/9. In 1960 the Federation was invited to join Celibride, the European Lace Trade 

Association. J.A. Walker was President of Celibride from 1977-1979. He was also a member of 

the board of Nottingham Lace Centre Ltd in the 1980s and 1990s. He was awarded the MBE in 

1979 for services to the lace trade. 

 

See more HERE:  See also: 'The History of J.B. Walker and Co. Ltd', ed. Jane Bealby, née 

Walker (privately printed by Edwinstowe, 2009) [copy at BWL/14/1]. 

 

Papers of J.A. Walker relating to the lace firms J.B. Walker and Company Ltd and Basford 

Textile Group Ltd, of Sandiacre and Nottingham, and to the lace trade in Nottingham and 

Scotland; c.1880-2010 

 

http://www.macearchive.org/archive.html?Title=134
https://www.archivesportaleurope.net/ead-display/-/ead/pl/aicode/GB-159/type/fa/id/GB+159+bwl#sthash.tam8Ht48.dpuf
http://www.basfordbrands.com/about/
http://www.basfordbrands.com/about/
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JOHN ANDREW WALKER.  

 

John A. Walker MBE (1910-2009) was the son of Robert Dudley Walker and the  third 

generation of the Walker family engaged in lace manufacturing in the Nottingham area. He 

would have been Hilda Mary (Walker) Lloyd’s nephew. 

 

Notice in the Daily Telegraph 

John Andrew Walker MBE, of Nottingham. Died peacefully on 13
th

 March 2009 in his 99th year 

after a distinguished career in the lace trade. Devoted husband of Barbara (deceased) and father 

to Dudley, Martin, and Jane (Bealby). Loving grandfather and great-grandfather. A private 

cremation will be held prior to a service at St Peter's Church, Nottingham on Monday 20th April 

at 2.30 p.m. Family flowers only. If desired, donations can be made to the Injured Jockeys Fund 

c/o Baguley Bros, 500 Mansfield Road, Sherwood, Nottingham, NG5 2FB. 

 

 
John Andrew Walker and Family. 

 

1967 Dr. Walker’s Obituary 

Transcription of East Grinstead Observer 27 Apr 1967 

Obituary 

 

Served Town As Doctor, Scout And Councillor 

 

Dr S L Walker [Uncle of the above John Andrew Walker, bother of Robert Dudley Walker, and 

son of John Benjamin Walker] 

 

The funeral service took place on Friday at St. Peter's Church, Nottingham, of Dr. Spencer Lewis 

Walker, M.D., L.R.C.P., M.R.C.S., of Stonehouse, Forest Row, one of the founder members of 

the East Grinstead and District Scout movement. 

 

Dr. Walker, who was 86, was formerly a very well known medical practitioner in East Grinstead. 

He came to live in East Grinstead in 1910 and joined the newly-formed Boy Scouts as a 

Scoutmaster. During the 28 years of Scouting that followed he rose to District Commissioner and 

was awarded the Silver Wolf, Scouting's highest honour. 
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He also played a major role in the erection of the present Scout headquarters at Moat Road, East 

Grinstead 

 

He was chairman of East Grinstead Urban Council dur­ing 1937-1938, 1942-1943 and 1943-

1944 and in the war years was the first to begin recruiting for the local Defence Corps, 

predecessor of the Home Guard. 

 

In addition to members of the family at the funeral service, Dr. Jean Kies and Mr Fred Weller 

were present as former East Grinstead Scouts. Arrangements have been made for the ashes to be 

scattered on Ashdown Forest following a 'Scouts Own' ser­vice at Broadstone Warren on 

Sunday, May 7, at 3 p.m. 

 

Former East Grinstead Scouts sent the following tribute to the 'Observer': There are hundreds of 

men around the world today whose lives are more interesting and complete because of the 

education received through the Scout movement from 'Doc'. To list some of the Scouting 

activities promoted or encour­aged by him: Glider building and gliding, wireless transmis­sion 

and reception, all just prior to the 1914-18 War, boxing, physical training and swimming, 

woodcarving, wood-turning and leather-work. Where necessary he employed professionals to 

give instruction; for example; boxing and wood-turning. 

 

1958 Death and probate of Austen Benjamin Walker [Brother of the above  Spencer Lewis 

Walker and Robert Dudley Walker, and son of John Benjamin Walker] 

 

 
 

The Nottingham Cooperative Society 

 

The Nottingham Cooperative Society (Ltd.) was established in 1863. The idea that gave birth to 

its foundation was the result of a report that the cotton operators of Yorkshire and Lancashire, 

during the hard times then prevalent, were enabled to avoid suffering by falling back upon their 

savings invested in what they called "The Cooperative Society."   

 

This society at the time was a novel institution, but its principles and their satisfactory results so 

favorably impressed two Nottingham manufacturers, Mr. Thomas Bayley and Mr. Benjamin 

Walker, who were deeply interested in the welfare of their workpeople, that they recommended 

the establishment of a similar society to their employees.  

 

Another source states that: 

 

It was events in Lancashire, the Lancashire Cotton Famine, which prompted the founding of the 

Nottingham Co-op. In the mid-1860s, the cotton mills of Lancashire were at the height of 

production, with cheap and plentiful cotton coming from the Southern States of America. With 



100 

6/2/2016 

the outbreak of the American Civil War this supply of cotton was cut off and the mill workers 

went from being amongst the highest paid to unemployed. 

 

In 1863, Messrs Thomas Bayley and Benjamin Walker, from the Laceworks at Lenton, visited 

Lancashire to see the effect of the famine. 

 

On returning home, convinced by the benefit of Co-operative and Mutual Societies’ effect on 

alleviating the worst of the problems, they founded ʻThe Lenton Industrial and Provident 

Society’. 

 

When the first retail shop was opened, on the corner of Gregory and Abbey streets, Lenton, the 

rather formal name had changed to The Lenton and Nottingham Co operative Society and, later, 

simply the Nottingham Co-operative Society. By 1914, the Society had over 50 shops and 

13,000 members with an annual turnover of £250,000. 

 

 

Brownsword.—Alderman Anderson Brownsword, J.P., 

 

Of Chestnut House, Nottingham, and Dilham House, 

Norfolk; son of John and Rebecca Brownsword; born at 

Nottingham, June 23
rd

 1839; educated at the Park Academy, 

Nottingham. Has been a member of the City Council since 

1886; Mayor, 1892-93; Sheriff of the City, 1890-91; 

Alderman and Justice of the Peace for the City; Chairman of 

the City Corporation Tramways Committee; Overseer of the 

parish of Nottingham; Governor of the Nottingham High 

School; Hon. Secretary for many years of the House of 

Refuge, Chaucer Street; for thirty-five years Hon. Organist 

and Choirmaster of the Broad Street Baptist Church, and 

Treasurer of same; President of the Nottingham 

Nonconformist Choir Union, and of the Nottingham Philharmonic Society; President of the 

Eastern Division Liberal Association; Chairman of Thomas Bayley and Company, Ltd., and of 

B. Walker and Company, Ltd.; Director of the Ilkeston Colliery Company, Ltd. Married Jane, 

second daughter of the late Benjamin Walker, of Lenton Priory, Nottingham, and Stretton, 

Derbyshire, and has issue one son and one daughter; member of the Borough and Liberal Clubs. 

Mrs. Brownsword is a member of the Nottingham Board of Guardians, representing the Manvers 

Ward. 

 

APPENDIX 

 

AT Leicester, on Wednesday, October 28, 1908, before the Borough Magistrates, Lester Harry 

Lloyd, Rutland Street, Leicester, was summoned that he “not being a. legally qualified medical 

practitioner, and not being registered under the Dentists Act, 1878, did unlawfully take and use a 

description, viz., ‘ Dentistry Notice. Mr. Lloyd’s only address is now 62, Rutland Street. Mr. 

Sharpe is with him,’ implying that he, the said Lester Harry Lloyd, was registered under the said 

Act,” from September 21 to 26. Another similar summons was for taking and using a description, 
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viz. : “Perfect and painless dentistry—Mr. Lloyd has removed from Gallowtree Gate to 62, 

Rutland Street,” on July 4, 1908. A third summons was, that not being a legally qualified medical 

practitioner, and not being registered under the Dentists Act, 1878, he did take and use a 

description, viz.: “ Mr. Lloyd, many years in Gallowtree Gate; painless treatment of mouth and 

teeth; maker of high class artificial teeth. Hours 10 to 8 ; [0 to l Thursday,” implying that he was 

specially qualified to practise dentistry, on October to. 

 

Mr. P. C. Sandlands prosecuted on behalf of the British Dental Association; Mr. W. F. Curtis 

represented the defendant. 

 

Mr. SANDLANDS said the British Dental Association existed for the protection of its members, 

and to see that the public were properly protected from persons who were not qualified. In 1878, 

an Act was passed, called the Dentists Act, and under that Act no one was entitled, under a 

penalty of £20, to use the term dentist, or a similar title, unless properly qualified and registered. 

The offence in the first case lay in an advertisement inserted by the defendant in a local 

newspaper, and the question for the Bench was, whether the style or description led one to 

suppose the defendant was registered under the Act, or that he was a person specially qualified to 

practise dentistry. The words “painless dentistry” used by defendant suggested that he was 

registered under the Act. 

 

Mr. G. ATKINSON, a solicitor, of Birmingham, said that defendant was not on the Dentists’ 

Register. 

 

After evidence as to the publication of the advertisement, Sergeant Ward deposed that on serving 

the summons he saw on defendant’s premises in Rutland Street the usual apparatus of a dentist. 

 

For the defence. Mr. CURTIS said his client admitted the advertisements. but argued that under 

the Act he had committed no offence. He had in no way imposed on the public, or induced them 

to believe he was specially qualified to practise dentistry. 

 

Mr. LLOYD was sworn, and said he had carried on the business for some considerable time, but 

had never had a complaint made against him before. He knew the provisions of the Act, and had 

always endeavoured to avoid making himself liable under them. 

Mr. SANDLANDS: ls dentistry a science or art practiced by dentists? 

DEFENDANT; Yes, it is, and also by people who are not dentists. 

Mr. SANDLANDS : That may be. 

The Bench decided to convict in this case. 

Mr. SANDILANDS said he was prepared to withdraw the second summons if the advertisement 

complained of was withdrawn. 

In the third case, Mr. Sandlands said the description used by defendant outside his premises 

indicated that Mr. Lloyd was not only specially qualified to act as a dentist, but that he did 

perform all that might be expected of a dentist. 

Mr. I. T. COOPER, having spoken of the inscription outside defendant’s Premises, Mr. Curtis 

contended that the wording complained of was simply a statement of fact, which Mr. Lloyd was 

entitled to make. He did not impose on the public, for what he said was quite true. Defendant had 

carried on business in Gallowtree Gate for many years, and he was quite entitled to use the term 
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“ painless dentistry" if he thought fit to do so. .... _‘ 

 

Mr. VINCENT : Do not you think a statement of that kind implies that he is a person specially 

qualified to practise dentistry ? 

 

Mr. CURTIS: No, sir. _  

 

The Bench decided to convict in this case. In the first case a fine of 20s., and £5 55. costs, was 

imposed, the second case was allowed to be withdrawn, while in the third case a fine of 20s., and 

ordinary costs, was inflicted. 

 

Some Symington Corset Ads: 
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Some Symington Food Ads: 
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Reu Ashkenaz Lloyd 

m. 

Nellie Sybil Clinch. 

John Alexander Lloyd 

m. 

Jane Meyers 

Lindsay Symington 

George Fieldhouse Lloyd *a 

m.1890 

Emily Marian Daffey 

Ian Henry 

Lloyd 

m. 

Laura  

Ford 

Frederick Thomas 

Lloyd 

m. 

Mary Unknown 

Annie 

Hill 

Anthony Harry 

Reu Lloyd 

m. 1951 

Agnes 

McSweeney 

Ashkenaz Lloyd 

m. 

Ann (Nancy) Fieldhouse 

Rosie 

Manship 

Cecil Reu 

Lloyd 

m. 

Mary 

Hopkins 

George Fieldhouse 

Lloyd 

m.1864 

Susannah Davis 

Marian 

Alexandra 

Isabel Lloyd 

m. 

William 

Joseph Kirby 

White 

Serug 

James 

Lloyd*c 

 

James Hayden 

Lloyd 

m.  

Florence 

Marjorie 

Towson 

Haydee 

Lloyd 

m.  

Sydney 

Clifford 

Pearson 

Anne Amelia 

Lloyd 

m. 

William Crole 

Lester Harry 

Lloyd*b 

m. 

Edith Sollitt 

Alfred 

Ashkenaz 

Lloyd 

Florence 

Sybil 

Lloyd 

m. 

Mitchell 

Nivens 

Gordon 

Lloyd 

Some, but by no 

means all, of the 

George 

Fieldhouse  Lloyd 

Family 

1. George 

Fieldhouse 

Sissmore Lloyd *e 

2. Susan Lloyd 

3. Alfred Lloyd 

4. Reginald 

Fieldhouse Lloyd 

1. John Brian Ford Lloyd 

2. Valerie Mary Lloyd 

3. Susan Lloyd 

William 

Hayden 

Lloyd 

William Henry 

Lloyd 

m. 

Matilda Crook 

*a bankrupt and alcoholic 

*b alcoholic, thief and fake dentist 

*c murdered his wife, attacked his 

child, and committed suicide. 

*e killed in action WWI 
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William Edmund 

Harry Lloyd 

m.1891 

Kate Wykes 

John Alexander Lloyd 

m. 

1. Jane Meyers 

2. Lindsay Symington 

Mary 

Fieldhouse 

Lloyd 

Ruth Annie 

Othen 

Frederick 

Thomas Lloyd 

m. 

Mary  

Mary Vivienne 

Lloyd 

Ashkenaz Lloyd 

m. 

Ann (Nancy) Fieldhouse 

Charles Barry Lloyd 

m. 

Susan Kay Cooper 

Ellen 

Kathleen 

Lloyd 

George Fieldhouse 

Lloyd 

m. 

Susannah Davis 

Ethel Clara Grimwood 

Margaret 

Ethel 

Lloyd 

Jessamine 

Ruth 

Lloyd 

Anne Amelia 

Lloyd 

m. 

William Crole 

Charles Frederick William Lloyd 

Alfred 

Ashkenaz 

Lloyd 

Harry Vyvian 

Lloyd 

m. 

Kathleen 

Wakeford 

Charles Peter Lloyd 

m. 

Celestina Louvain 

Mae Roberts 

Some, but by no means 

all, of the Lloyd Family. 

Showing the 

Descendants of  

Frederick Thomas Lloyd 

and his brother William 

Henry Lloyd 

Sandra Joan 

Lloyd 

Paul Robert 

Lloyd 

Nancy 

Lloyd 

William Henry 

Lloyd 

m. 

Matilda Crook 
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Florence 

Lindsay Lloyd 

m. 

R I Purdon 

John Alexander Lloyd 
m. 

1. Jane Meyers 

2. Lindsay Symington 

Ada 

Mary 

Lloyd 

Frederick 

Thomas Lloyd 

m. 

Mary  

Eleanor 

Ida 

Man 

John 

Alexander 

Lloyd 

Ashkenaz Lloyd 

m. 

Ann (Nancy) Fieldhouse 

Michael 

Edmund 

Lloyd 

Mary 

Matilda 

Roslin 

George Fieldhouse 

Lloyd 

m. 

Susannah Davis 

Leonora 

Weldon 

Lloyd 

m. 

Guthrie 

Allsebrook 

Alfred 

Edmund 

Lloyd 

Edith 

Maud 

Dow 

Anne Amelia 

Lloyd 

m. 

William Crole 

Nellie 

Symington 

Lloyd 

m. 

Charles 

Salomon 

Paddon 

Alfred 

Ashkenaz 

Lloyd 

John Alexander Lloyd 

m. 

Hilda Mary Walker 

Joan Margaret 

Lloyd 

m. 

Ray Edmund 

Richard 

Jewry-Harbert 

Some, but by no means 

all, of the Lloyd Family. 

Showing the 

Descendants of  

John Alexander Lloyd 

and his brother Alfred 

Edmund 

Patrick 

Lloyd See 

Allsebrook 

Tree 

William Henry 

Lloyd 

m. 

Matilda Crook 

Sheilah 

Edith 

Lloyd 

Sarah 

Mary 

O’Grady 

Janet 

Ann 

Lucille 

Lloyd 

m. 

Maurice 

Foakes 

Renne 

Inez Lloyd 

m.  

Thomas 

Tovey 

John 

Alexander 

Lloyd 

Lindsay 

Eric Lloyd 

Ian 

Dundonald 

Lloyd 

There was another little boy named Colin belonging 

to this ‘yellow’ generation whose sister Leonora 

was very fond of but who died at the age of about 

seven when he broke his neck by jumping from a 

hayrick where the children were playing. 
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The Man-Lloyd-Allsebrook Connection 
 

This section is intended to display the connection between the Lloyd family and the Allsebrook 

family and to provide some background details to the wedding held on 18
th

 February 1939 at 

Arborfield church where Janet (Lloyd) Foakes was a bridesmaid.   

 

In December 2015 I [David Man, the nephew of Eleanor (Man) Lloyd] was contacted by Annie 

Allsebrook, the daughter of John Colin Pole Allsebrook and the granddaughter of Guthrie 

Allsebrook who married Leonora Weldon Lloyd (see chart below).  

 

Annie kindly sent me some passages written by Colin Allsebrook in a family memoire called 

‘Family Fables’ including one on his ‘Uncle Alec’ [John Alexander Lloyd (1869 – 1939)] as 

follows:  

 

“I remember him as a rather jovial person, - commuting by train daily to the A. Lloyd and Sons 

factory in Deptford, and living in his fine Surrey home with its outbuildings and lake, a chauffeur 

and several, maids. He had five children, - three boys and two girls. We used to spend very 

happy holidays there with them, - and as the family grew up-, the life-style was very reminiscent 

of a Wodehouse story! – with tennis parties and dances, and the older children each having a car. 

Uncle’s wedding was romantic: he fell in love with and married Hilda Mary Walker of 

Nottingham….She was a very pretty girl of 18 years, - but for the first month he did not tell his 

parents! I think they were very happy together and made home a happy place.” 

  

Of their son John Alexander Lloyd (1908-1986) Colin Allsebrook wrote: 

 

“...married Eleanor Mann, - a very pretty fair-haired girl who I always thought of as being like a 

Nordic Princess. She was a friend of Inez and we used to see her when she stayed at the Broom 

Park home for parties. She was of German origin but spoke unaccented English. They had two 

daughters but then divorced….”. 

 

In ‘Family Fables’, Colin also wrote: 

 

“An old photograph shows Field House, Deptford, London. In the first half of the 1800s it was 

the home of Mother’s forbears, the Lloyds. … Certainly my uncles Alec [John Alexander Lloyd 

1869 – 1939] and Edmund [Alfred Edmund Lloyd 1878 – 1953] were daily commuting to 

Deptford by the time they were grown-up and working in the firm. The family lived at several 

addresses at one time and another, all in the Croydon area, in places where there was lovely 

country, fine houses and gardens. [Below the two brothers Alec and Edmund] 
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Alec [driving] and Edmund Lloyd in what is probably a De Dion-Bouton 

“…I also think it was at the Manor House at Woodmansterne that she [Lindsay Symington] and 

her husband John Alexander Lloyd lived and bought up their children. Certainly they lived there 

at a later time but may have had other homes in that area before settling there.” 

 

The Allsebrooks probably came in contact with the Lloyds through Guthrie’s half-sister Fanny 

who took a job in the Lloyd’s Surrey home as governess to a brood of young Lloyd children. 

There was some visiting by the youngsters between Surrey and Nottingham – and that is how 

Guthrie met the youngest–but-one of the Lloyd family – Leonora Weldon, whom he married. 

 

Below, a partial transcript of a letter dated 14
th

 June 1973 from Inez (née Lloyd) to Mrs. Janet 

(Lloyd) Foakes. 

 

My Dear Janet, 

…. 

…………. when we have a get together I’ll tell you all I know about the Lloyds! 

 

The Lloyds lived in the main house in Woodmansterne & when Patrick died of leukaemia aged 

3½ the house was pulled down & another built on the sight [sic]. The old house was really 

beautiful with sweeping lawns & cedar trees. A tragic family – Michael also my cousin was 

killed in the war. Edith my aunt died of cancer & the second Mrs. Lloyd (aunt’s nurse) is still 

alive – she was Irish. 

…… 

Dearest love to all 

Aunt Inez 

 

Inez Mary Lloyd was born on 1
st
 August 1909 and was the sister of John A. Lloyd. She married 

Harold Waters (d. 1963). Her sister Nancy married Robert Douglas Glass on 4
th

 February 1939. 

 

Patrick Alexander Lloyd (see above) was the son of Alfred Edmund Lloyd and the second Mrs. 

Lloyd (Sarah Mary O’Grady). Patrick died on 2
nd

 June 1935 age 3½. Sarah died March 1974. 
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Edmund’s first wife, Edith (Maud Dow), (whom Inez refers to in her letter to Janet) died in 1928 

and it was Sarah O’Grady who nursed her.  

 

Janet (Lloyd) Foakes and Annie Allsebrook are second cousins as can be seen from the chart 

below. Janet’s father was the first cousin of Lindsay Ann Allsebrook who was the bride at 

Arborfield church. 
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The newspaper cutting below and the following photograph were sent to me by Janet Foakes 

who asked me to clarify the relationship between herself and the bride to whom she was 

bridesmaid.  
 

MAN LLOYD ALLSEBROOK 

Lenora  

Weldon Lloyd 

1876-1958 

Harry Morgan 

Stoe Man 

1875-1936 

m. 1909 

Eleanor Loeck 

1884 - 1953 

Eleanor 

Man 

1910-2004 

John Alexander 

Lloyd 

1908-1986 

Janet Ann Lucille Lloyd 

1935 -  

m. 1960 

Maurice Charles Foakes 

1935 - 

 

John Alexander Lloyd 

1829-1904 

m. 1862 

Lindsay Mary Symington 

1838-1912 

John Alexander 

Lloyd 

1869 – 1939 

m.  

Hilda Mary Walker 

1887-1970 

Guthrie Allsebrook 

1874-1965 

Colin Pole 

Allsebrook 

1908-2005 

m. 1940 

Mary Hawes Nesbit 

1910 - 2003 

Lindsay Ann 

Allsebrook 

1913-1994 

m. 1939 

Harry Alfred 

Warner 

1913-1993 

Anne Boyd 

Allsebrook 

1950 -  

Duncan Lloyd 

Allsebrook 

1947 -  

William Pole Jones 

Allsebrook * 

- 1906 

m. 
Sophia Parry Heathcote 

1844-1927 

 

Edward Garnet Man 

1837-1920 

m. 1867 

Katherine Jane 

Matthews 

1834 - 1919 

*William’s sister Fanny 

was the mother of Sir 

John Simon (left) who 

was one of only three 

people to have served as 

Home Secretary, Foreign 

Secretary, and Chancellor 

of the Exchequer as well 

as Lord Chancellor.  

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/John_Simon,_1st_Viscount_Simon
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/John_Simon,_1st_Viscount_Simon
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Above, despite it being the middle of February the wedding party does not look particularly 

chilled. Janet is the little girl in white holding a posy.   

 

Another description of the wedding from Times and Weekly News: 
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February 24
th

1939: Arborfield Wedding: Warner – Allsebrook Miss Lindsay Anne Allsebrook, 

daughter of Mr. and Mrs. Guthrie Allsebrook, of Arborfield Hall, Arborfield, was married at St. 

Bartholomew’s, Arborfield, on Saturday to Mr. Henry Alfred Warner, son of Mr. H. Warner, J. 

P., and Mrs. Warner, of Whitton, Ipswich. The service was conducted by Canon J. A. Anderson 

and the bride was given away by her father, Mr. G. Allsebrook, a prominent Reading business 

man. 

 

The bride’s gown was of empire design with prominent silver-metal brocade falling from the 

waist into a train. The back and sleeves were fastened with heart-shaped buttons and fastened 

with heart-shaped buttons and the square neck was finished with a Medici collar. The glowing 

parchment veil, edged with a silver thread, was caught round the head in an orange blossom 

coronet. She carried a bouquet of lilies of the valley and blue hyacinths. 

 

She was attended by Mrs. Bell (sister of the bridegroom), Mrs. Axworthy, Miss Ruth Prescott, 

and Miss Eileen Newcombe. They wore midnight blue dresses with puff-top long, tight sleeves. 

The skirts were very full, slightly trailing at the back, and headdresses of the same material were 

finished with blue feathered birds. Little Miss Janet Lloyd, aged four, a cousin of the bride, 

wore a parchment georgette dress, with silver ribbon round a high waist. The bridal attendants 

carried Victorian posies of mixed anemones. 

 

The best man was Mr. Ronald H. Willett, of Ipswich. A reception was held at the bride’s home. 

The honeymoon is being spent in Devon and Cornwall. The bride travelled in a pale blue cloque 

dress, faced at the neck with cyclamen silk, and a navy trimmed brown squirrel coat. 

 

On    1940 Lindsay (Allsebrook) Warner’s brother - John Colin Pole Allsebrook - married Mary 

Hawes Nesbit and the following four images are of that wedding. Hilda (Walker) Lloyd, Janet 

(Lloyd) Foakes’ grandmother, can be seen in the second image walking down the steps. Walking 

next to her is Alec Wilson, the best man, who introduced Colin to Mary. In the third image she 

faces the camera talking to an unidentified person. 
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116 

6/2/2016 

 
 

 

 
 

Below from: Arborfield Local History Society 

 

Families: Guthrie Allsebrook and Family 

Guthrie Allsebrook ran a specialist water-supply Company for many years from the Artesian 

Works in Crown Street in Reading (just to the south of London Street). He was born into a 

farming family in Wollaton, Nottinghamshire. 

 

Sophia Parry Heathcote was the second wife of William Pole Jones. They had seven children: 

Arthur b 1872/73, Guthrie b 1874, Wilton, George Clarence, Eric, Alan, and Dorothy b 1884. 

His first wife was Letitia Harper, and they had three children: Mary b 1866, Fanny b 1897 and 

Robert b 1870. 

 

By the 1881 census when Guthrie was 6, his father William Pole Jones Allsebrook, originally 

from Foxall in Staffordshire, farmed 297 acres and employed 10 men and 5 boys. His mother 

Sophia Perry (Heathcote) Allsebrook, originally from Chorlton-on-Medlock in Lancashire, had 6 
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children living at home: Fanny
1
, aged 13, born in Little Bromwich in Warwickshire; Robert, 

aged 12, born in Bromsgrove in Worcestershire; Alan Pole, aged 10, from Wollaton; Guthrie, 

aged 6; George, aged 3; and Eric, aged 2. Living with them were a cowman, a carter, a 

ploughboy, a labourer, a cook and a housemaid. His father eventually took on the roles of land 

agent and valuer, and died in 1906 in his mid-70s. 

 

On the 1891 census are: Wm T J Allsebrook (56) [Farmer and Valuer], his wife Sophia P 

Allsebrook (46), and children: Fanny H Allsebrook (23), Robt P Allsebrook (22), Arthur 

Allsebrook (18), Guthrie Allsebrook (16) [Engine and Machine Maker’s Apprentice], Wilton 

Allsebrook (15), George C Allsebrook (13), Evie H Allsebrook (12), Allan P Allsebrook (10), 

Dorothy P Allsebrook (7), Alice Adcock (17). All children are born at Wollaton in 

Nottinghamshire. The servants are Mary J B Summer (18) Eliza A Charlton (15) Walter W 

Edwards (19), Sam E Deaman (17). 

 

 
 

Guthrie and his wife Leonora Weldon (nee Lloyd) married in Croydon in about 1902. Below are 

two photographs of the wedding: 

 

                                                 
1
 The mother of Sir John Simon 
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The Allsebrooks bought Arborfield Hall in 1926. 

http://www.berkshirehistory.com/castles/arborfield_hall.html
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Aborfield Hall, Berkshire  

Guthrie (aged 36) with wife (24) and son (3) on the 1911 census: 

 

 
 

By the 1930s the Allsebrooks were fully involved in village life, being founder members of the 

Village Hall Management Committee in 1932. Members of the family put on a pantomime at the 

Village Hall in January 1933. That year, a major project was completed to pump water from a 

340-ft well below Arborfield Mill and store it in reservoirs at the top of a hill off Highland 

Avenue, Bearwood. The project, carried out for Wokingham R.D.C., culminated in an opening 

ceremony at the pumping station on 19th July 1933.  

 

In October 1939, the 'Reading Mercury' featured the work of Guthrie Allsebrook and Co. in an 

article entitled 'How to increase crops - Rain when it's needed' .   

 

Arborfield Hall was taken over for military use during WWII, and the Allsebrook family moved 

to Shinfield . The water-pumping business continued to prosper under Guthrie and his son Colin; 

Guthrie died on 30th December 1965, aged 91 at The Grove, Shinfield. His funeral was held at 
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Arborfield Church January 4th 1966, and his Obituary appeared with identical wording in both 

the Reading Mercury of January 8th and the Reading Chronicle of January 7th. 

 

 
An Allsebrook Water Pump  

The business continues into the 21st Century but under the name 'Allsebrook Pump and 

Electrical Services Ltd.', operating from Stoke Row near Henley-on-Thames. The old company 

records have been deposited at the Museum of English Rural Life in Reading, and include a 

catalogue of pumps and pumping machinery dating from January 1912. Among its 92 pages are 

details of "artesian borings, tube wells, dug wells, water towers, reservoirs, tanks, mains, water 

wheels, hydraulic rams, wind engines filters, power units, boilers and sewage equipment". 

 

 
 

Colin Allsebrook wrote a privately-published book entitled 'Water Wisdom' in 1993, which is the 

story of the family firm of Guthrie Allsebrook & Co Ltd. A review by the Pump Distributors' 

Association helpfully lists the main chapters, which cover a diverse range of subjects; 

Hydrogeology, Digging wells, Drilling Boreholes, Pumps, Pumping with air, Water power, Wind 

power, Containing and cleaning water, Sewage disposal, Irrigation, Displays and Fountains. 

 

Obituary of Guthrie Allsebrook, from the Reading Mercury, 7th January 1966: 

 

DEATH OF MR. GUTHRIE ALLSEBROOK 

 

A man who was extremely well known and very popular throughout Reading and in the South of 

England, Mr. Guthrie Allsebrook, died at his home, The Grove, Shinfield, on Thursday last 

week. He was 91. 

 

Born near Nottingham, he spent his first 21 years on his father's farm, and during this time 

developed a great love and understanding of country things. He completed a five-year 

apprenticeship with a Nottingham firm making engines, pumps and machinery for laundries and 

sugar-refineries. 

 

In 1901, after travelling around the world installing machinery for various firms, he bought the 

old-established water-supply business of Edward Margrett at Reading, which then became 

“Margrett and Allsebrook”. The business was later renamed “Guthrie Allsebrook and Co.”, the 

name of the present firm. It is interesting to note that Mr. Allsebrook's death coincides with the 

centenary year of the original business – started in 1865. 
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His long association with the water-supply business made him one of the foremost authorities on 

the subject in the South of England, and together with his son, Mr. Colin Allsebrook, he was the 

first to draw attention to the potential supplies of water in the Kennet Valley. Their suggestions 

began the plans for the Kennet Valley Water Scheme. 

 

Mr. Allsebrook started up in business after an argument with his boss 

because he had worked too hard! 

 

He was at the time working for a London engineering firm as assistant 

manager. The manager fell ill and Mr. Allsebrook worked like a trojan 

during his absence. The manager on his return accused Mr. Allsebrook of 

trying to steal his job and sacked him. With a loan from his father, Mr. 

Allsebrook bought a small well-boring firm, which has become the 

present-day firm of “Guthrie Allsebrook and Co.” 

 

Mr. Allsebrook was one of the first to join Reading Rotary Club and remained a member for 45 

years. A mason, he was a member of the Kendrick Masonic Lodge. 

 

The funeral service was held at Arborfield Church on Tuesday. 

 

Below Leonora Weldon (Lloyd) Allsebrook’s Red Cross WWI volunteer nurse’s card: 

 

 
 

Below, Leonora’s probate record: 
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NOTES ON MARY NESBIT (HAWES) ALLSEBROOK (1910-1994) 

 

Colin Allsebrook married Mary Nesbit Hawes. She was born on 25 August 1910 in Hanover, 

New Hampshire, USA, the daughter of Charles Henry and Harriet (Boyd) Hawes. She received 

her Bachelor’s degree from Radcliffe College in 1933. Her earlier career in the United States 

included being a statistical researcher in bituminous coal in the National Recovery 

Administration, Washington DC, 1934-1935. She was a researcher at the International Labor 

Office, summer 1935. Mary became a junior economist and then junior legal assistant at the 

Consumer Project in the Department of Labor, 1935-1938. 

 

 In 1938 she left the US to become a roving correspondent for the Washington Post newspaper 

stationed in Central Europe.  She met Colin Allsebrook in Czechoslovakia in 1938, and, after a 

romance largely conducted by mail, she travelled across the Atlantic in January 1940 to marry 

him. 

 

Between 1942 and 1945 she was an advisor on food availability in Europe at the United States 

Embassy in London. She was a member of the executive and political committees of the United 

Nations Association, London, 1970s and 80s and a founder member and trustee the Oxford 

Project for Peace Studies, 1980-1994. 

 

Books by Mary Nesbit (Hawes) Allsebrook: 

Born to Rebel: The Life of Harriet Boyd Hawes [Harriet Boyd Hawes was Mary’s mother and the 

first woman to lead an archaeological excavation in the Aegean.] 

Prototypes of Peacemaking: The First Forty Years of the United Nations 

 

***************************** 

Biographical Note on Harriet Boyd Hawes the mother of Mary Nesbit (Hawes) Allsebrook. 

(From Smith College Archives)  

 

Harriet Boyd Hawes was born on October 11, 1871 in Boston, Massachusetts. She was educated 

at the Prospect Hill School in Greenfield and graduated from Smith College in 1892 with a 

degree in classics. Hawes always felt a deep love for Greece and a strong desire to understand its 

culture and history. She studied at the American School at Athens from 1896-97 and the next 

year became a Fellow there. While in Greece, she learned that the Greeks (who were in the midst 

of the first Greco-Turkish War) had no nursing supplies and with support from the Queen of 

Greece soon became a nursing volunteer. Several years later she was decorated by the Queen for 

her contributions. 

 

Hawes soon became well known not only for her volunteer work but also for her expertise in the 

field of archaeology. For four months in the spring of 1900, she led an excavation at Kavousi, 

Crete during which she discovered houses and tombs from the Geometric period (900 BC). 

During another excavation less than a year later in Gournia, Crete, she discovered a Mycenaean 

provincial town and later published a book along with her husband Charles Henry Hawes 

entitled, Crete: the Forerunner of Greece.  
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Harriet accepted a position at Smith College teaching Greek archaeology in 1900 and received 

her M.A. from Smith in 1901. She taught at Smith until 1905 interspersing her time there with 

frequent trips abroad for archaeological excursions. During one trip to Crete, she met Charles 

Henry Hawes (1867-1943), an English anthropologist and archeologist who later became the 

associate director of the Boston Museum of Fine Arts. They were married on March 3, 1906 and 

nine months later their son, Alexander Boyd Hawes was born. A daughter, Mary Nesbit Hawes 

followed in August of 1910. By this time Charles was teaching at Dartmouth College and the 

family was living in Hanover, New Hampshire. 

 

Despite her commitment to her family, Hawes remained active in both humanities and her field 

of archaeology. In 1910, Hawes received an honorary degree from Smith College. She traveled 

to Corfu in 1915 for a year to work extensively with the Serbian Army. In 1916, she helped the 

wounded in France and a year later she founded and was the first director of the Smith College 

Relief Unit in France. She held this title for three years during which time she worked as a 

nurse's aide at the YMCA. 

 

In 1920, the Hawes moved to Cambridge MA and Harriet joined the faculty at Wellesley 

lecturing on Ancient Art. When Charles retired in 1936, the couple moved to Washington D.C. 

where Harriet remained after her husband died. She died on March 31, 1945. 

 

 

 

Harriet Boyd Hawes 
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Symington’s Fruit Scheme 1903 
An attempt is being made by Mr. W. Weldon Symington, Chairman of the firm of Messrs. 

Thomas Nash & Co. of Plymouth, to establish a trade in fruit between some of the Lesser 

Antilles and Great Britain. 

 

The fruit is proposed to be shipped, in the first instance, once a fortnight by the steamers of the 

Royal Mail Steam Packet Company, the Directors having promised, if sufficient inducement 

offer, to give special storage for the fruit, and to keep it ventilated by means of fans, etc. 

Mr. Symington is now actively engaged in making experimental shipments of such fruits as are 

available, and it is hoped that the results will justify an extension of the area already planted in 

oranges, pine-apples and bananas and lead to the establishment of an important fruit industry in 

some of these islands. 

 

The following reports of meetings held in connexion with Mr. Symington's scheme show that a 

good deal of interest is being taken in it:— 

 

ST. VINCENT. 

A Public Meeting was held at the Court House, Kingstown, on January 29, his Honour the 

Administrator in the Chair. 

Mr. W. Symington presented an outline of his scheme, and the following resolution was 

unanimously passed:— 

 

Having heard the outlines of Mr. W. Weldon Symington’s scheme for finding an assured market, 

a rapid transit, and for providing a cash purchase of fruits from this island, on delivery at 

suggested local depots :— 

 

It is resolved. That this meeting representative of all classes of the community cordially desires 

to promote in every way his scheme and to further his efforts for the advantage of the colony and 

at the same time wishes success to the Royal Mail Steam Packet Company under their new 

management in their support of the scheme in furnishing the necessary carrying accommodation. 

(3.) And requests that Mr. Chamberlain be asked to facilitate Mr. Symington in carrying the 

scheme into practical effect. 

(4.) This meeting further desires that copies of this resolution be forwarded to his Excellency the 

Governor for transmission to the Right Honorable the Secretary of State for the Colonies, the 

Royal Mail Steam Packet Company and to Messrs. Thomas Nash & Co. of Plymouth. 

 

St. LUCIA. 

A special meeting of the Agricultural Society was held at the Executive Chamber on February 6, 

his Excellency Sir R. Llewellyn, K.C.M.G., in the chair. 

Mr. Symington explained the nature of his scheme, and after a general discussion the following 

resolution was adopted :— 

That having heard the outlines of Mr. Weldon Symington’s scheme for finding an assured 

market for the fruit grown in this island and for purchasing it for cash on delivery in local depots, 

we hereby declare our approval of his scheme and our firm desire to support it in every way. We 
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would further add that the success of any such scheme depends chiefly on inducing the Royal 

Mail Steam Packet Company to provide proper carrying accommodation. In the event of the 

Imperial Government declining to provide the grant of £250 per annum for three years to meet 

the initiative local expenses, we think it might properly be borne by the local Government having 

regard to the undoubted benefits which will acrue to the island from the establishment of this 

scheme. 

 

DOMINICA. 

Mr. A. K. Agar, Hon. Secretary of the Dominica. Agricultural Society writes, that at a Special 

General Meeting of the Society held on February 13, Mr. W. \V. Symington gave an outline of 

his proposed fruit scheme. The meeting was very largely attended and a keen general discussion 

followed Mr. Symington’s speech, particularly 0!! the question of the guarantees. Finally the 

following resolution was passed unanimously to be sent to the Secretary of State for the 

Colonies, the Royal Mail Steam Packet Company and Messrs. Thos. Hash & Co. of Plymouth 

2—— 

Resolved. That the Dominica. Agricultural Society do pledge itself to give all reasonable support 

to Mr. Symington’s 

Further, that in the event of Mr. Symington giving guarantees ensuring that the magnitude of his 

operations in Dominica will warrant such a course, this Society do express the earnest wish that 

the Imperial Government will, through the Department of Agriculture, grant to Mr. Symington 

such financial assistance as he now asks for. 

 

TRINIDAD. 

At a meeting of the Agricultural Society, held on March 10, his Excellency Sir A. Moloney, 

K.C.M.G., Governor of the colony in the chair, the following resolution was passed :— 

(1.) This Society having had explained by himself the scheme of Mr. W. Weldon Symington, for 

promoting a fruit trade between this and other West Indian Islands and the United Kingdom, 

records its approval thereof as well as its intention to support it in every way it can. 

(2.) That a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Government for transmission to the 

Secretary of State for the Colonies, the Royal Mail Steam Packet Company and Messrs. Thomas 

Nash Jr Co., of Plymouth. 

 

CURING ORANGES. 

The great importance of good packing has been ' often dwelt upon in the Agricultural News with 

reference to West Indian fruit. Oranges are very liable to reach the market in poor condition 

unless they have been thoroughly well packed, and amongst the factors which contribute largely 

to the success or failure of a shipment of oranges is the ‘curing' or as it is sometimes termed the 

‘hardening’ of the fruit. 

 

This subject was well dealt with by Mr. J. H. Hart at the second West Indian Agricultural 

Conference (West Indian. Bulletin Vol. 1, p. 301). He said: ‘No fruit should ever be packed 

when freshly gathered . . . Oranges should be picked at least three or four days before packing, 

and laid out in single layers until all the moisture, or what is known as the “sweat” of the fruit 

has disappeared. To pack fruit when wet or damp is to covet certain failure.’ 

Very similar advice is given in the Journal of the Agricultural Society of Jamaica for February, 

quoted from the Florida Fruit Farmer. It is there clearly explained that by the curing process the 
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rind becomes slightly hardened and consequently less liable to bruising. One important point 

overlooked in the article referred to is the part played by fungi in causing the decay of fruit. It is 

suggested ‘that it is the oxygen of the air penetrating into the little cracks and abrasions of the 

rind that cause decay.’ Of more importance are the fungi which gain admittance through cracks 

and bruises. The real object in curing fruit is to obtain a dry rind on which the fungi cannot 

readily live, and a tough resistant skin, which not being readily bruised prevents these fungi 

obtaining access to the interior of the fruit.  


